BETHLEHEM AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF SCHOOL DIRECTORS
BUDGET HEARING

A Budget Hearingof the Board of School Directors of the Bethlehem A
School District was held on Mondaylay 11, 2010at6:14 p.m. in theDining
Room of theEducation Center1516 Sycamore Streddethlehem,
Pennsylvania.

The Board Secretary called the roll:

Members present: DirectorAmato, Burkhardt,Cann, Dexter, Follweiler
LeesonMcKeon,and Ortizi 8

Members absenEaccinettd 1

Others present: DiThomas Persingnterim Superintendent of SchoolStacy
M. Gober,Board Secretary; administratonrsiembers of the press, and otl
interested citizens and staff members.

President Leeson welcomederyone to the meeting. She apologized for
lateness of the board. She noted that they had an executive session cor
personnel just prior to the meeting and they ran over time.

President Leeson offered courtesy of the floarisitors. Speakers are asked
to come to the podium, stating their name and address. Public comment
first session is limited to 30 minutes. Speakers are limited to three mi
each. The board requests that, when possible, all individuals suppmitkey
position on a topic select a speaker to present their views to avoid repetil
that is not possible, all are welcome to speak. As per school board ¢
generally, speakers are limited to taxpayers, residents, or employees

school digrict. At the conclusion of the regular school board meeting, anc
block of time will be allocated for public comment. At that time, the same

will apply. It is asked that speakers observe proper decorum, without pe
attacks towards a specifiedividual or individuals. It is not the custom for tl
board to enter into a dialogue at these meetings about concerns. Howe!
board does listen with care to issues raised. Speakers will receive respol
some form, by the administration.

The following individuals addressed the Board of School Directors:
1. Margot Hillmani 1256 Moffitt Avenue, Bethleherm

Ms. Hillman stated that her son, Ben Kraft, is a junior at Liberty F
School. She indicated that her remarks are very general contpamdtit
she is certain the board will be addressing. She thanked the memb
serving on the school board. She stated that she is sure there are tin
it seems like a thankless position. She offered three thoughts to the
as they work on & budget.

-AfKeep your eye on th
-AEducation is more t

e ball . o
han what h

MAY 11, 2010

BUDGET
HEARING

MEMBERS
PRESENT

OTHERS
PRESENT

WELCOME

COURTESY
OF THE FLOOR
TO VISITORS



-ASpend it now or spend it | ate
She recalled that the best piece of parenting advice she ever received
Akeep your eye on t hasapaaeht|the.ballis8
kind of adult you wish your child to become. She hopes to raise a thir
caring adult, capable of living a reasonably happy and productive life.
noted that the school district has a similar goal or mission. It magpder
to raise automatons or excellent test takers but that would not ser
cityés or countryobés needs. She
more than what happens in the classroom but she thinks it bears rep
She stated that olmaiisly what happens in the classroom is crucial
beyond the classroom needs are more likely to be challenged in
economic times. She explained that children need to feel safe in schc
they need to feel that they belong. She continued leansirdjfficult
without this baseline. She noted that she does not think her son wo
the person he is if he had not participated in Odyssey of the Minc
MathCounts before going to Liberty. She said that strategy c
scholastic scrimmage and theath team gave him a home and helped
find his peer groups as he adjusted to life at Liberty. She believes tl
would not be doing as well as he is without these eodracular activities.
She continued that as much as she is frustrated by theatifocus on
sports, she recognizes that spo
many school children. She noted that the key activity is going t
different for different kids but having a range of such activities may be
tohavingasuce s s f ul school . ASpend i
that they can replace a few tiles on a slate roof every year or wait unt
have to replace the whole roof because years of exposure has dama
rafters. She wants the board to know ttiegre are Bethlehem resider
who understand that if they do not spend money on our schools now
will spend more in taxes later on police, on drug and alcohol rehabilite
and prisons. She firmly believes, be assured, that they will spen
morey one way or the other. She clarified that she does not mean th:
must spend unlimited amounts of money on our schools but they mt
sure they are funding the elements that are important to educat
children. She encouraged the board to kbep eye on the ball, rememb
that education is more than what happens in the classroom and to fu
most important elements of our school system. She wished the board
best as they and district staff figure out what those elements are artd |
manage in these challenging budgetary times. She further noted th
brought three copies that she could leave with the board.

. Steve Antalics 77 Ridge Street, Bethleheim

Mr. Antalics stated that al | echnee
very clear to get the children to get diplomas based upon their ability
out of the school qualified to move on. In that respect, he suggested tl
to the very beginning, preschool and kindergarten. He noted that ther
establish a legaing ability in the children and at the college level they
appalled at the students at the first level inability to write a good sentel
proceed in math. He noted that in preschool and kindergarten are ct
who are qual i f ipraperpanental ualandéetso theeefor
they wish to get them out the front door with a diploma, he suggest



equipment them at the very fundamental level;®Pm@ K. So therefore
moneyeé where do they want t o fthey
want the children to go out the front door with diplomas, then equip -
early on to be proficient in math and reading before they get intc
process. He noted that if they get into the process not equipped to ree
they are going to fail bgefinition in math and in reading. He noted tl
the scores have shown that the district is deficient in these areas. He
where they want to put their money, with the kids before they statK F
and K. So these programs should be absolutely #misand funded a:
such and other programs, whatever they are, should be either elimine
cut or diminished in terms of the funds allocated. He told the board to
their eye on the mission, get the kids out of the front door with diplo
but to sart them out with the best ability to get to that final level.

President Leeson thanked the administration for the excellent b
presentation. She noted that she has been a board member for eleven y
has participated in eleven budgets and this is by far the best presentati
she has seen. She contidubat she also has had the opportunity to serv
the Northampton Community College board and on theT®¥ch board anc
although they do a super job, this was really outstanding. She continue
the board gave them the charge to bring a needs badgdtbuShe noted th:
they took that charge very seriously and that is what they brought the boe
they also brought the goals, the objectives and how it was going to fit in
district and how they are going to reach their objectives through tiigel.
She thanked them again for such a professional presentation and an outs
job.

President Leeson turned the meeting over to Dr. Persing. He stated tF
budget is his responsibility and he accepts it fully. He continued tha
important thing is that all of the administrators involved made a su
contribution along with the principals and teachers and everyone else
stated that without a team effort this would never have happened.

Dr. Persing stated that their goals haveai@nged. He recalled that they mi
maintain and reestablish fiscal and financial integrity. He noted that is nt
one and if they donot do that al
happen. He explained that when they see that they laregdbe board to tak
a courageous step of what looks to be a substantial tax increase, it really
that they are investing in the future. He noted that this is not a one year |
but that it is a future budget and they have to build on thatstated that he
really does not need to tell the board that it is part of that integrity they
reestablish their AAA rating and they are on good steps towards that
continued that the curriculum and instruction includes a lot of things that
to be done next year if they are going to have the situation in the curric
and instruction office that are presently planned. The last item he noted"
maintain the pride and the esprit de corps of the Bethlehem Area £
District and make sure the in the forefront. He reminded the board that t
are Bethlehem Area School District. He stated that he is very proud to ha
privilege to serve the district for the limited time he has been there.

BUDGET
PRESENTATION



xaen @

Bethlehern Area Schod District

2010-11 Preliminary Budget
Development

Response to April 27t Questions

Budget Hearing
May 11, 2010

Mrs. Gober began by explaining that what they have put together is esse
more information for everyone and it is premised primarily in responding t
guestions that were raised when they were together last. She noted th:
were a lot of quamns from the board and community and they took
opportunity to reiterate and bring back additional information as almost ar
layer to the analysis tool kit so that they can go through and understand
is that they are requesting as an adstiation and that they can work throu
the development process together.



Total Increase Allowed Under Act 1
Index plus Exceptions

Mills
Allowable Index 2010-11 - 3.6% § 4,004,527  1.4976  3.60%

Approved Exceptions:
School Construction - Debt $ 2,402,493  0.8990 2.16%

Maintenance of Local Revenue
or AIEper ADM § 4443369 1.6617 3.99%
Retirement Contributions $§ 1,506,291  0.5636 1.35%
$ 8352153  3.1243 7.51%

Total Allowable Increase Under
Act 1 Provisions § 12356680 4.6219 11.11%

She noted that the first guestio
increase that is permitted under ACT 1 as it relates to the Index, exce|
mill age rates, and percentage i nc
slide in just a litte different fashion to focus on the Index as it is statec
Bethlehem as a baseline is 3.6% which would allow them to levy $4 mi
1.49 mils or 3.6%. She stated that they then applied to the Departm
Education for all exceptions for which thgyalified. She stated that there ¢
three. One is school construction for the debt service. Based on the
schedul es cloOnp a n-tllntggyl &) Germitted to increase

additional $2.4 million or 2.16% to cover the increase debt obligatiorr -116
She stated that they also were able to qualify for an exception to cov
increase in the PSERS rate which is another $1.5 million or 1.35%. She
the largest exception was maintenance of local revenue. She stated tl
believes tfs is key in understanding a little bit of history of how they got wr
they are today. She noted that when the State compares Bethlehem t
LEAG6s across the Commonweal th and
what this number represents gt Bethlehem is locally funding revenue for
students per average daily membership of $4.4 million or 1.6 mils, 4% of
increase. She thinks that goes to some extent of some prior history of ul
fund balance to balance the budget as a rewvaource rather than looking

implement millage to pay for egoing expenditures, things like utilities, -0
going salary increases and so on. She noted that if they bundle thos
exceptions which have been approved, they would be able to levyn#iBad,

3.12 mils or 7.5% in addition to the stipulated ACT 1 Index. So in total, if
add those together, they would be able to levy 4.6 mils or 11.1% increase
taxes for 2014l1. She noted that everyone has agreed that is not wha
have equested. She stated that they have requested an increase of 6.1
that is still where they are today. She hopes that this provides some clarit



what they are permitted to do as a comparison to what they have requeste

Total Outstandina Debt

BETHLEHEM AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
CURRENT DEET PORTFOLIO

10.9% of Budget

Series A of 2001
Series A af 2007
Series A of 2009
Serzes A of 2009
Serics B of 2009

Series of 2010

5,300,000
44,890,000
68,180,000
14,410,000
10,665,000
28,850,000

% of Total Debt|

TOTAL

172,295 000

Variable Rate (with Fixed Payer Swaps)

Series of 2007
Series of 2000
Series of 2010

Principal
54,985,000
40,950,000
30,000,000

TOTAL

125,935,000

Source: PFM

Mrs. Gober contined that she believes that the next question was a ser
guestions that stemmed from a few different angles and approaches a
thinks that they have addresses the myriad of bond isselet- swap question:

in one bundle.

She noted the total tansling debt is $298 million in tot:

across the bonds issues that the Districts currently has. She noted those
in the blue box as traditional fixadte debt that has been refinanced over

last few years.

She also noted the box in red ammtdiose bonds that a

variable rate bonds that are related to swap arrangements that are instrun

try to mitigate fluctuations in interest rate.



Total Outstanding Debt

Total Principal Qutstanding Principal % of Total Debt

Fixed Rate 172,295,000 37.77%
Variable Rate (with Fixed Payer Swaps) 125,935,000 42.23%
TOTAL 298,230,000 100.00%%
BASD Debt Limit $397,265,234
January 2009 January 2010

' Fixed Rare ' Variable Rate (with Fixed Payor Swaps)

Source: PFM

Mrs. Gober noted that this slide gives a graphical illustration that shc
different perspective of looking at where the District was a year ago and wi
is currently. She noted the $2.98 million that the District has outstanding
the entire dbt limit that it would be able to issue under the State limitati
The District would be able to issue another $100 million in debt if it
sufficient construction projects to warrant that. She noted that currently
10.9% of the budget is towdrdebt which is slightly above the avera
Generally about 10% of the budget is what a rating agency likes to see
noted that as they look at the two pie charts, the board can see that the
worked very diligently to reduce the red portions viahéce the variable rate ar
as market conditions warrant it they will put that variable rate debt into a
rate instrument that provides more stability to the District in terms of plar
future budgets.



Bond Swaps

|BETHLEHEM AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
CURRENT SWAP PORTFOLIO

Senes of 2009 39,990,000

124,605,000 41.78%

January 2009 January 2010

Tax Risk WMo Tax Rislc
[ R I Mo Tax Source: PFM

She noted that they look at the swaps as an isolated instrument as a subs
variable rate set that exists. She stated that by doing the most recent re:
through 2007 and those most recently in December and January of this ye
have manageto significantly reduce the amount of tax risk that is associ
with the swaps that are in place. She stated that she will be able to exple
when they get to a subsequent slide.



Bond Swaps

Yield Curve Risk

TOTAL 0 0.00%

January 2009

. Yield Curve Risk ' No Yield Curve Risk

NOTE: DOES NOT INCLUDE 1997 SWAPTION, WHICH HAS NOT YET BEEN EXERCISED
Source: PFM

She noted that they have essentially eliminated any YialdeCRisk which is
primarily Awhat does the market i
i ncreases iIinterest rates or what
to the portfolio and exposure and costs. She noted that essentially thee
eliminated that exposure and risk for all intents and purposes.



Market Impact on Swaps

Assumption: 1.00% increase in short term interest rates
(equally for both bond & swap) using principal
outstanding 5/4/2010

Bonds | Fixed Payor Swap | Net Change

Pay: Pay: Receive:
2007 Bonds | $549,829 | $ -0- |($549,829) $ -0-
2009 Note | $409,250 | $ -0- [($399,854) $9,396
2010 Note | $299,979 | $ -0- |($296,300) $3,679

Source: PFM
Mr s . Gober stated that another gl
happens if interest rates change?

example. As aexample, they assumed on the three variable rate notes the
have in place that the interest rates would change by a 1% increase to st
that would do. She pointed out
that those are the actual vareblate bonds that they have issued from
underlying debt structure. She continued that they layer the swap on tha
explained that the Fixed Payor Swap tries to offset any increase in interes
that they have on that original variable ratédtdeith a revenue stream th
would essentially wash out any market risk that they would have in terr
interest rate. These instruments are working today since the most
refunding in January about as seamlessly as they can. She noted that
never a perfect, 100% alignment but at this point if they would see rates ¢
full percent higher than what they are today, it would be an exposure -
District of about $13,000. She thinks it is indicative to demonstrate that
really have eminated the huge risks that had been in place a number of
ago and are really in a more comfortable position in terms of being able
that they can understand and predict expenditures.

10



Market Impact on Swaps

Basic Information:

BONDS FIXED PAYOR SWAP
Pay: Pay: Receive:
Series of 2007 Bonds * | Weskly VRDE Rate 4 145% 60% of 1-Manth LIBOR + 0. 346% | Dexia

£54,085,000 outstanding |plus 30 bps admin

Series of 2009 Note ™ |1 Month LIBOR +1.31% | [3774% 68% of 1-Month LIBOR Wachoria
£40,950,000 outstanding

Series of 2010 Note ™" |SIFMA + 150 bps 3900% 60% of 1-Month LIBOR + 0.345% | REC
£30,000,000 outstanding

* The Liuidity Facility relating to the 2007 Bonds expires on January 4, 2012, at which point or before PFM will discuss with the
Board.

" Tha 2009 Note 15 a Wachovia bank loan set to mature May 1, 2011
™ The: 2010 Note will need to be re-evaluated on or before January 5, 2012, at which paint the first mode of the Note 1s set to
expire.

Source: PFM

She stated that this slide addresses market risk blgoi addresses a little bit -
what that tax risk was on the previous slide. Mrs. Gober noted that the ir
rates on the original bonds that they have, the regular, variable rate debt, :
to a tax exempt municipal financing rate. She notethébox on the righ
contains a swap component that takes the variable rate debt and it locl
those center rates at 4.145%, 3.774%, and 3.900%. She continued

exchange for t hat fixed output C
investrrent earning of a variable rate that is based on LIBOR which is an in
rate factor that is a taxable instrument. It is a taxable market instrument
explained that is where the tax risk comes into play. She continued that 1
structure wouldbe substantially modified where taxes would rise substant
or fall to zero then they would have that disconnect and that would impa
amount of money that would need to be paid out or would be receiv
resulting in somewhat of a disconnect. Shether noted that they hay
mitigated most of that obligation and this just explains how the two pieces
together and what the underlying factors are that drive the rates that they

11



Kindergarten Class Size
T\homas Jefferson Elementary
2010-11 Projection

» Total Projected Students 56
— Current Kdg Registration 30 Stds
» Teachers Scheduled 2
» Est. Class Size Kdg 28

+ Possible Class Size Reduction Using Title |I-A

Currently on Watch List
for Enrollment Variations

Mr. Washington addressed a question that was rgismdously about Thoma
Jefferson Elementary School. He believes the question was about the pr
numbers that Thomas Jefferson is expecting but it is actually about the ¢
class sizes. He wanted to confirm what was said is true and that thepies
class there that is at 26. He noted that the range should be somewhere |
22 and 24 so they are over that class roughly somewhere between 2 and
He continued on to look at the projected number. He noted that the
projected to beteb6 next year. Currently they have 30 students that show
for kindergarten registration this year so far. He continued that if the proje:
stayed the same there will be an estimated class size of 28. He noted
obviously high and they aneatching that but they only had 30 show up ¢
they have to get from that 30 to the 56 and that is what they watch. He
that they would not necessarily apply a teacher right now but they will watc
numbers and see throughout the summer andighraentral registration whz
those numbers will be. He explained that typically historically they see
ten kids come into that school during the summer registration. He restate
they have to watch the numbers for right now. He explainedHhbagtare going
to go with the projected numbers and put them on a watch.

12



What is the cause of declining
enrollment at Donegan?

NCLB Opt Out School Choice (78 Students)

No New Residential Construction

Declining Live Birth Rate

Increasing Charten School Enrollment (28)

Open Enroliment to Other BASD Schools (12)

Potential Decline LV Dual Language CS

Mr. Washington addressed the inquiry about the declining enrollme
Donegan. He stated that he went to the Child Accounting Department
noted that Mrs. Majewski was in attendance and would be available to a
any questions that may arise. Helkaned that they looked at several variak
that are impacting Donegan. The first is No Child Left Beliintie Opt Out.
He explained that if the school does not make AYP, the students have the
to opt out. This year there were 78 studentsdhabse to opt out of the schot
Second, there is no new residential construction in the area. He noted tt
affects the numbers. Third, he pointed out that there is a declining live birtt
He explained that five years ago there were notrfaaty children born in the
catchment area. He continued that the Child Accounting Department ac
keeps track of that by calling local hospitals. Fourth, he stated that there
children enrolled in a charter school. Fifth, he noted that l8rehi are oper
enrolled. He noted that is different from children that opt out because of N
He continued that this is the district policy that allows families to choose ar
elementary school. Sixth, he stated there is a potential for a dualatsr
charter school. He explained this is one of the reasons why they are we
the numbers there carefully becatl
with that school. He continued that they take the pure numbers that the:
based on the pregtions and they staff at that and continue to watch
numbers. He stated that he has had several conversations with the prin
well. He noted that after the dual language school has their open regist
which he believes was last week, theijl try to contact them to see what the
numbers look like so they can start making adjustments.

13



Comparison of staffing vs.
enrollment at FHS & LHS?

What are the scheduling
differences between FHS & LHS?

What is the average class size
In core curriculum at each HS?

Mr. Washington continued to the question regarding the comparison of st
and enrollments at Freedom and Liberty high schools as well as theeddé in
scheduling.

14



Core HS English

Liberty Freedom

Sections| Ratio | Sections Ratio

English9 | 566/21 271 Teaming 211

English 10 | 393/14 28:1 268/10 271

English 11 | 323/12 27:1 417/15 27.8:1

English 12| 443/15 | 28.9:11 | 369/14 26.4:1

He explained that he looked at the core classes and their ratios. He col
that they took the ratios of the core classes. He illustrated with the exarr
English 9. He noted there are 566 kids who have actually indi¢hé they
want to take this class. That number is then divided by the number of se
which gives a ratio. He explained that at Freedom the process is ¢
different because of a process called teaming where they put kids in a t
four texhers. He further explained that if you take their four teachers i
core and the number of students assigned to that team that is the ratio
ninth grade team. He continued that wh&rgeade at Freedom is indicated t
ratio is going to be 21 except when they get into Math and English.
explained that this is because kids who have been pushed up into math a
who are taking different sciences that changes a little bit. He noted Engl
on the chart pointing out the differenticst He explained that in English
Liberty there are about 5 sectio
explained that those are for students who are struggling but may not be
He noted that ratio is a little bit smaller and it was deslghat way in order tc
have classes in which students who are having difficulty can have si
environments and have an opportunity to deal with their academics.

15



Core HS History

Liberty Freedom
Sections | Ratio | Sections Ratio
US History 2| 566/21 271 330/12 2751
US History 3| 810/29 | 28:1 693/25 2041
(10&11)
Amer Govt 540/19 |28.4:1| 323/12 2.2

Mr. Washington continued with the History program. He stated that he tri
do thecore with each one. He explained that those are the numbers of kic
have selected divided by the number of sections required to teach them ¢
ratio that comes out. He noted that US History 3 is a combination"bérid
11" graders that is whyhere is a larger number. He noted that the ratios
calculated the same way for all the courses indicated which are the bas
courses in that subject area.

16



Core HS Science
Liberty Freedom

Sections | Ratio | Sections Ratio
Biology 338/12 28:1 | Teaming 271

Environ- 529/19 | 27.8:1 279/11 2041
mental
Chemistry | 366/13 28:1 260/10 26:1

Physics 267/11 271 106/4 26.5:1

Anatomy NA NA 190/7 2711
& Phys

Mr. Washington moved on to the science courses. He explained that scier
little different because there are more students depending on the sequ
what they are taking. He again pointed out that Freedom science deals w
teaming and biology at Liberty indicates the number of kids who have sel
He continued to mentiogach class as it is represented at each school. He
that he did have the numbers for Anatomy & Physiology at Liberty. He s
that it is about 118/4 and the ratio is roughly 29.5:1.

17



Core HS Math

Liberty Freedom

Sections | Ratio | Sections Ratio
Algebra | 321112 | 26.7:1 245/10 24.5:1

Geometry [ 551/20 | 27.5:11 | 264/10 26.4:1

Algebra Il | 499/17 | 29.3:11 | 251/10 25:1

Pre-Calc 301 | 2091 17717 25.2:1

Calculus 94/4 24:1 74/3 24.7:1

Mr. Washington explained that the courses are listed in the sequence tl
students most often experience. He noted that some of the kids, based «
middle school experience, may not go to Algebra | but may begin at Geom



Class Size Comparisons

for all schools that are targeted for teacher reductions

09-10 Class 10-11 Class
School Grade Enrollment  # Classes Ave Enrollment Reduction  # Classes Avg
Donegan (éTIIfA) 65 5 13.0 63 (0.5) 45 14.0
1 82 5 16.4 65 2.0) 3 217

2 73 5 14.6 74 (1.0) B 185

3 68 4 17.0 69 (1.0) 3 230

4 74 4 185 65 (1.0) 3 21.7

5 99 4 24.8 71 (1.0) 3 237

Total  (6.5)

Mr. Washington continued on to the question regarding class size
particularly regarding the schools that were targeted for reduction. He exp
that to the left on the slide above the-II® enrollment is indicated with th
number of classes and the class averadde continued that one the right is t
projected enroliment, the reduction in number of classes and the class ave
that level. He further explained the detail on the slide.

19



Class Size Comparisons

for all schools that are targeted for teacher reductions

05-10 # 10-11 ;

School Grade Enrollment Classes Enrollment  Reduction # Classes _Cha
Asa Packer 4 83 4 75 (1.0) 3

James
BiaSiaan 3 47 3 38 (1.0) 2
Clearview T L0RAY 63 4 59 (1.0) 3

Fountain

Hill 1 123 6 109 (1.0) 5

Soni

e 1 82 4 62 (1.0) 3

He indicated the other elementary schools that were impacted
reductions.

by

20



Class Size Comparisons

for all schools that are targeted for teacher reductions

09-10 # Class 10-11
School Grade Enrollment  Classes Avg Enrollment Increase # Classes = Class Avg

Govemor p : /
Wolf 4 69 3 23.0 83 +1.0 4 208

Thomas
Jefferson

1 48 2 240 78 +1.0 3 26.0

Mr. Washington indicated that this slide illustrates two areas of increa
classes. He noted that the Thomas Jefferson concern regarding the
kindergarten classes are being addressed with an increase in the first gra
number.

He addessed the concern about the possibility of eliminating German fror
high schools. It was noted that Liberty was losing a .7 and Freedom was
a .3 for a total 1.0 German teacher. He stated that they are not eliminati
course offering but thathe number of students requesting that class
decreased so the number of staff required is less. He noted that the two
classes at Liberty are combined to give them a ratio of 19:1 for the two clas

21



Mr. Washington addressed the administration ratio at the middle sc
because they are reducing at all four schools. He noted that the pure proj
for next year with the number of administrators the ratios are indicated i
slide above. He indated each line as it shows above.

22



